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products to consumers in this Judicial District and throughout the United States. Defendants have 

persisted in creating Defendant Aliases. E-commerce sales, including e-commerce internet stores 

like those of Defendants, have resulted in a sharp increase in the shipment of unauthorized products 

into the United States. See Exhibit 2, U.S. Customs and Border Protection, Intellectual Property 

Rights Seizure Statistics, Fiscal Year 2021. According to the CBP report, over 90% of all CBP 

intellectual property seizures were smaller international mail and express shipments (as opposed 

to large shipping containers). Id. Approximately 60% of CBP seizures originated from mainland 

China and Hong Kong. Id. Counterfeit and pirated products account for billions of dollars in 

economic losses, resulting in tens of thousands of lost jobs for legitimate businesses and broader 

economic losses, including lost tax revenue.  

15. Groups of counterfeiters, such as Defendants here, are typically in communication 

with each other. They regularly participate in QQ.com chat rooms and communicate through 

websites such as sellerdefense.cn, kaidianyo.com, and kuajingvs.com, where they discuss tactics 

for operating multiple accounts, evading detection, pending litigation, and potential new lawsuits.  

16. Counterfeiting rings take advantage of the anonymity provided by the internet, 

which allows them to evade enforcement efforts to combat counterfeiting. For example, 

counterfeiters take advantage of the fact that marketplace platforms do not adequately subject new 

sellers to verification and confirmation of their identities, allowing counterfeiters to “routinely use 

false or inaccurate names and addresses when registering with these Internet platforms.” See 

Exhibit 3, Daniel C.K. Chow, Alibaba, Amazon, and Counterfeiting in the Age of the Internet, 41 

NW. J. INT’L. L. & BUS. 24 (2020). Additionally, “Internet commerce platforms create bureaucratic 

or technical hurdles in helping brand owners to locate or identify sources of counterfeits and 

counterfeiters.” Id. at 25. Therefore, with the absence of regulation, Defendants may and do garner 
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competing with Plaintiff. Such conduct has permitted and will continue to permit Defendants to 

make substantial sales and profits based on the goodwill and reputation of Plaintiff, which Plaintiff 

has amassed through its lengthy nationwide marketing, advertising, sales, and cumulative 

consumer recognition. 

35. Defendants knew or, by the exercise of reasonable care, should have known that 

their past, current, and continuing advertising, marketing, promotion, distribution, display, 

offering for sale, sale and/or otherwise dealing in the counterfeit goods has and will continue to 

cause confusion and mistake or to deceive purchasers, users, and the public. 

36. In addition, by using Plaintiff’s trademarks in connection with the sale of 

counterfeit products, Defendants create a false designation of origin and a misleading 

representation of the fact as to the origin and sponsorship of the counterfeit product.  

37. Defendants’ false designation of origin and misrepresentation of fact as to the origin 

and/or sponsorship of the counterfeit product to the public is a willful violation of Section 43 of 

the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125.  

38. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful actions, Plaintiff has been 

and will continue to be deprived of substantial sales of its genuine products. 

39. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law and, if Defendants’ actions are not enjoined, 

Plaintiff will continue to suffer irreparable harm to its reputation and the goodwill of its brand. 

COUNT III 

VIOLATION OF ILLINOIS UNIFORM DECEPTIVE 
TRADE PRACTICES ACT (815 ILCS § 510/2) 

 
40. Plaintiff hereby realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 39.  
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41. Defendants have engaged in acts violating Illinois law including, but not limited to, 

causing likelihood of confusion and/or misunderstanding as to the source of their goods, causing 

a likelihood of confusion and/or misunderstanding as to an affiliation, connection, or association 

with Plaintiff representing that their products have Plaintiff’s approval when they do not, and 

engaging in other conduct which creates a likelihood of confusion or misunderstanding among the 

public.  

42. Defendants knew, or by the exercise of reasonable care should have known, that 

their past, current, and continuing advertising, marketing, promotion, distribution, display, 

offering for sale, sale and/or otherwise dealing in the counterfeit goods has and will continue to 

cause confusion and mistake, or deceive purchasers, users, and the public. 

43. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law, and Defendants’ conduct has caused 

Plaintiff to suffer damage to its reputation and goodwill. Unless enjoined by this Court, Plaintiff 

will suffer future irreparable harm as a direct result of Defendants’ unlawful activities.  

COUNT IV 

CIVIL CONSPIRACY 

44. Plaintiff hereby realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 43.  

45. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that Defendants knowingly 

and voluntarily entered into a scheme and agreement to engage in a combination of unlawful acts 

and misconduct including, without limitation, a concerted and collaborated effort to maintain the 

distribution, marketing, advertising, shipping, offer for sale, or sale of counterfeit products in 

violation of the Illinois Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act, 815 ILCS § 510, et seq.  
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46. The intent, purpose, and objective of the conspiracy and the underlying 

combination of unlawful acts and misconduct committed by the Defendants was to undermine 

Plaintiff and its business by unfairly competing against it as described above.  

47. The Defendants each understood and accepted the foregoing scheme and agreed to 

do their respective part, to further accomplish the foregoing intent, purpose, and objective. Thus, 

by entering the conspiracy, each Defendant has deliberately, willfully, and maliciously permitted, 

encouraged, and/or induced all the foregoing unlawful acts and misconduct.   

48. As a direct and proximate cause of the unlawful acts and misconduct undertaken 

by each Defendant in furtherance of the conspiracy, Plaintiff has sustained, and unless each 

Defendant is restrained and enjoined, will continue to sustain severe, immediate, and irreparable 

harm, damage, and injury for which Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.  

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendants as follows: 

A. That Defendants, their affiliates, officers, agents, employees, attorneys, and all other 

persons acting for, with, by, through, under, or in active concert with them be temporarily, 

preliminarily, and permanently enjoined and restrained from:  

i. using Plaintiff’s trademarks in any manner in connection with the distribution, 

marketing, advertising, offering for sale, or sale of any product that is not a genuine 

product of Plaintiff, or is not authorized by Plaintiff to be sold in connection with 

Plaintiff’s trademarks;  

ii. passing off, inducing, or enabling others to sell or pass off any product as a genuine 

Plaintiff product or any other product produced by Plaintiff that is not Plaintiff’s or 

not produced under the authority, control, or supervision of Plaintiff and approved 
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by Plaintiff for sale under Plaintiff’s trademarks and associated with or derived 

from Plaintiff’s trademarks;  

iii. making, using, selling, and/or importing to the United States for retail sale or resale 

any products that infringe Plaintiff’s trademarks;  

iv. committing any acts calculated to cause consumers to believe that Defendants’ 

counterfeit products are sold under the authority, control, or supervision of Plaintiff, 

or are sponsored by, approved of, or otherwise connected with Plaintiff, including 

without limitation through use of Plaintiff’s original photographs and marketing 

text in connection with the offer or sale of counterfeit products;  

v. further infringing Plaintiff’s trademarks and damaging Plaintiff’s goodwill;  

vi. otherwise competing unfairly with Plaintiff in any manner;  

vii. shipping (including drop-shipping), delivering, holding for sale, transferring, or 

otherwise moving, storing, distributing, returning, or otherwise disposing of, in any 

manner, products or inventory not manufactured by or for Plaintiff, nor authorized 

by Plaintiff to be sold or offered for sale, and which bear any Plaintiff’s trademarks, 

or any reproductions, counterfeit copies, or colorable imitations thereof;  

viii. using, linking to, transferring, selling, exercising control over, or otherwise owning 

the Defendant Internet Stores, or any other domain name or online marketplace 

account that is being used to sell or is how Defendants could continue to sell 

counterfeit products;  

ix. operating and/or hosting websites at the Defendant Internet Stores of any other 

domain names registered or operated by Defendants that are involved in the 

distribution, marketing, advertising, offering for sale, or sale of any product bearing 
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(b) otherwise injured the business reputation and business of Plaintiff by Defendants’ acts 

and conduct set forth in this Complaint; 

G. In the alternative, that Plaintiff be awarded statutory damages pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 

1117(c)(2) of $2,000,000 for each and every use of Plaintiff’s trademarks; 

H. That Plaintiff be awarded its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs; and,  

I. That Plaintiff be awarded any and all other relief that this Court deems equitable and just.  

Plaintiff demands trial by jury as to all causes of action so triable.  

Dated: January 17, 2025 Respectfully submitted,  
 
/s/ James E. Judge  
 
Zareefa B. Flener (IL Bar No. 6281397) 
James E. Judge (IL Bar No. 6243206) 
Ying Chen (IL Bar No. 6346961) 
Flener IP Law, LLC 
77 West Washington Street, Suite 800 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
(312) 724-8874 
jjudge@fleneriplaw.com  
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